
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF NEWBERG COUNCIL AGENDA 

APRIL 4, 2011 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 
 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER* 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS & RECOGNITIONS 
 

1. Consider a motion approving a proclamation declaring April as Child Abuse Preparedness 
Month.  (Pgs. 3-6)

 
2. Consider a motion approving a proclamation declaring April 11-17, 2011, as Public Safety 

Telecommunications Week.  (Pgs. 7-8)
 
V. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(30 minutes maximum, which may be extended at the Mayor’s discretion, with an opportunity to speak 
for no more than 5 minutes per speaker allowed) 

 
VII. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2011-2939 initiating a Development Code 
amendment pertaining to the Civic Corridor Sign Code.  (Pgs. 9-19)

 
2. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2011-2940 authorizing the city manager to enter 

into an agreement with Group Mackenzie to provide design services for the Fire Station 20 
Remodel Project.  (Pgs. 21-22)

 
3. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2011-2941 authorizing the city manager to issue a 

task order providing pre-construction services for the secondary clarifier design in the amount of 
$118,292.00 with M.A. Mortenson Construction for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Repair, 
Renovation, Expansion Project.  (Pgs. 23-28)

 
4. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2011-2942 initiating a Development Code 

amendment pertaining to technical specifications and signature requirements for partition and 
subdivision plats.  (Pgs. 29-45)

 
*The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (April 4, 2011) Page 1 of 2 

Page 1



*The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (April 4, 2011) Page 2 of 2 

5. Consider a motion approving Council minutes for February 7, 2011, and February 22, 2011. 
(TO BE SUBMITTED UNDER SEPARATE COVER) 

 
VIII. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Executive Session pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(I) relating to performance review of the city 
manager. 

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
INDEX OF ORDERS, ORDINANCES, AND/OR RESOLUTIONS: 
 
 
RESOLUTION(S): 
Resolution No. 2011-2939 initiating an amendment to the Newberg Development Code regarding signs in the 
Civic Corridor.  
Resolution No. 2011-2940 authorizing the city manager to enter into a professional services agreement with 
Group Mackenzie, to provide design services for the fire station 20 remodel project. 
Resolution No. 2011-2941 authorizing the city manager to issue a task order to provide pre-construction 
services for the secondary clarifier design in the amount of $118,292.00 as part of the approved contract with 
M.A. Mortenson Construction. 
Resolution No. 2011-2942 initiating amendments to Newberg Development Code Chapter 15.235 pertaining to 
technical specifications and signature requirements for partition and subdivision plats. 
 
 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City 
Manager’s office of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 
48 hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact Norma Alley, City Recorder, at (503) 537-1283. 
 
Council accepts comments on agenda items during the meeting.  Fill out a form identifying the item you wish to speak on prior to the 
agenda item beginning and turn it into the City Recorder. The exception is land use hearings, which requires a specific public 
hearing process.  The City Council asks written testimony be submitted to the City Recorder before 5:00 p.m. on the preceding 
Thursday.  Written testimony submitted after that will be brought before the Council on the night of the meeting for consideration 
and a vote to accept or not accept it into the record. 
 
 
 

City of Newberg Mission Statement: 
 

The City of Newberg serves its citizens, promotes safety, and maintains a healthy 
community. 

Page 2



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: April 4, 2011 
Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Bob Andrews, Mayor SUBJECT:    Approve a proclamation declaring the 

month of April, 2011, as Child Abuse Prevention 
Month. Dept.: Administration 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve a proclamation declaring the month of April, 2011, as Child Abuse Prevention Month. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Juliette’s House Child Abuse Assessment Center contacted the City to request the City’s support with a 
proclamation declaring the month of April, 2011, as Child Abuse Prevention Month.  Juliette’s House also 
encourages the City’s participation with the “Pinwheels for Prevention” campaign to create awareness of the 
need to prevent child abuse and neglect.  The pinwheels, a symbol of a happy childhood, have been made by 
the students of Yamhill-Carlton intermediate and high schools and have been placed all around Yamhill 
County.  The “Pinwheels for Prevention” campaign encourages others to learn more about preventing child 
abuse or how to report abuse by contacting Juliette’s House, CASA, or the Yamhill County Commission on 
children & Families. 
 
With great appreciation and gratitude, the mayor brings forward this proclamation for your consideration. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
This supports the Council’s desire to be an active participant in the community by reaching out and 
recognizing the importance of educating citizens on child abuse and neglect occurring within our 
community. 

Page 3



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
A PROCLAMATION DECLARING APRIL AS NATIONAL CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION 
MONTH 
 
WHEREAS, National Child Abuse Prevention Month began in 1983 as part of a Presidential proclamation to 
raise awareness of the alarming rate at which children were being abused and neglected; and 
 
WHEREAS, this month of awareness has since become an annual event reaffirmed by each succeeding 
President; and 
 
WHEREAS, every child deserves to grow up in a healthy, safe, nurturing environment; and 
 
WHEREAS, child abuse and neglect causes psychological, emotional, and physical harm which can create 
lifelong problems for victims of abuse; and 
 
WHEREAS, child abuse and neglect impacts our entire society and our society’s future; and 
 
WHEREAS, parents, families, and communities can help reduce child abuse and neglect by recognizing that 
prevention starts with each of us; and 
 
WHEREAS, Juliette’s House Child Abuse Assessment Center has encouraged partner agencies and 
concerned citizens throughout Yamhill county to display pinwheels, a happy symbol of childhood, during the 
month of April as part of the “Pinwheels for Prevention” campaign to create awareness of the need to 
prevent child abuse and neglect; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS PROCLAIMED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Newberg, 
Oregon, proclaims the month of April as National Child Abuse Month and urge the citizens of Newberg to 
work together to eliminate child abuse and neglect from our community. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and cause the Seal of the City of Newberg to be 
affixed on this 4th day of April, 2011.      
 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: April 4, 2011 
Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 

SUBJECT:    Approve a proclamation declaring 
April 11-17, 2010, as National Public Safety 
Telecommunications Week. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Mary Newell 
             Support Services Manager 
Dept.: Police 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Request to approve a proclamation declaring April 10-16, 2011, as 
National Public Safety Telecommunications Week. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  The Newberg-Dundee Communication Center joins other 9-1-1 
communications centers across the nation in celebrating the week of April 10 – 16, 2011, as National Public 
Safety Telecommunications Week.  This week, the Association of Public Safety Communication Officials 
(APCO) International honors the thousands of men and women who respond to emergency calls, dispatch 
emergency professionals and render life saving assistance to the citizens of the United States.  
 
Newberg-Dundee Communications Center provides 9-1-1 emergency dispatch and information services to 
the citizens of Newberg and Dundee and approximately 80 square miles of rural Yamhill County.  In 
addition to being the primary service answering point (PSAP) for east Yamhill County, they answer the 
Newberg-Dundee Police main phone line, and handle after hour calls for the City of Newberg and Dundee 
Fire Department.   During 2009, Newberg-Dundee Communications Center answered approximately 62,641 
telephone calls, 13,530 of which were emergency 9-1-1 calls.    
 
Telecommunciations officers are not telephone operators.  Technology has significantly changed the 
operations of a 9-1-1 dispatch center.  Telecommunicators must be able to multitask between telephones, 
multiple radio systems, CAD, mobile and RMS systems, and GIS mapping technology.  Telecommunicators 
must complete 80 hours of training and an additional 24 hours of emergency dispatch training to become 
certified.  Mandatory annual training is required to maintain certification. 
 
Staffed 24-hours per day, Newberg-Dundee Communications employs 9 FTE. Additionally, a records-
evidence technician, who has maintained Telecommunicator and EMD Certification, assists with dispatch 
duties during staffing shortages.  Represented are a Spanish-English bi-lingual speaker; a volunteer 
Newberg-Dundee Police Reserve Officer; and four Bachelor’s degrees in law enforcement, education, 
business, and psychology.     
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:   With great appreciation and gratitude, we recognize and celebrate the 
hard work of these largely unseen dedicated professionals who work in tandem with police, fire and EMS to 
ensure the safety and security of our citizens. 

Page 7



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
A PROCLAMATION DECLARING APRIL 10 – 16, 2011, AS NATIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS WEEK 
 
WHEREAS, emergencies can occur at anytime that require police, fire, or emergency medical services; and 
 
WHEREAS, when an emergency occurs the prompt response of police officers, firefighters, and paramedics 
is critical to the protection of life and preservation of property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the safety of our police officers and firefighters is dependant upon the quality and accuracy of 
information obtained from citizens who telephone the Newberg-Dundee Communications Center; and  
 
WHEREAS, Public Safety Telecommunicators are the first and most critical contact our citizens have with 
emergency services;  
 
WHEREAS, Public Safety Telecommunicators are the single vital link for our police officers, firefighters, 
and emergency medical personnel by monitoring their activities by radio, providing them information and 
insuring their safety; and  
 
WHEREAS, Public Safety Telecommunicators of the Newberg-Dundee Communications Center have 
contributed substantially to the apprehension of criminals, suppression of fires and treatment of patients; and 
 
WHEREAS, each dispatcher has exhibited compassion, understanding and professionalism during the 
performance of their job in the past year. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS PROCLAIMED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Newberg, 
Oregon, proclaim the week of April 10 through 16, 2011, to be National Public-Safety Telecommunications 
Week in Newberg, in honor of the men and women whose diligence and professionalism keep our city and 
citizens safe. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and cause the Seal of the City of Newberg to be 
affixed on this 4th day of April, 2011.      
 
 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Page 8



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2939 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: April 4, 2011 

Order       Ordinance  _   Resolution  XX   Motion  __   Information ___ 

No. No.  No. 2011-2939 

SUBJECT: Initiation of a development code 

amendment to the Civic Corridor sign code, 

prompted by the proposed sign for the Chehalem 

Cultural Center.    

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Steve Olson, AICP, Associate Planner  

Dept.: Planning & Building 

File No.: DCA-10-001 
                            (if applicable)  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Adopt Resolution No. 2011-2939, initiating an amendment to the Newberg Development Code that 

would modify the Civic Corridor sign regulations. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The Civic Corridor Overlay Sub-district is an overlay zone that runs north-south along Howard Street and 

includes most of Newberg’s civic buildings. The overlay zone was created in 2002 to emphasize the civic 

heart of the community. Two buildings which characterize the historic style of Newberg are City Hall, built 

in 1913 and the library, built in 1912. The overlay zone has specific design standards for buildings and signs 

to ensure that new development is consistent with the local historic traditions that these buildings represent. 

 

Civic Corridor Overlay Sub-district 

 
 

Page 9



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2939 PAGE 2 

The Chehalem Cultural Center has proposed adding a permanent sign over the front entrance. The sign 

would consist of raised bronze letters mounted on the concrete header over the doors. This sign easily 

meets the downtown C-3 design standards but does not meet the Civic Corridor standards and therefore 

cannot be approved. Staff thinks that the proposed sign is a good fit for the Civic Corridor, and that 

therefore the City Council should consider initiating changes to the Civic Corridor sign standards. 

 

Staff reviewed the existing signs in the Civic Corridor and determined that there are three design themes that 

tie the corridor signs together: (1) raised metal or wood letters on a background wall; (2) copper/brass/bronze 

frames or highlights; and (3) brick backgrounds or structures. The Civic Corridor sign standards currently 

require signs to include four out of six possible design elements. The code could be simplified to require 

signs to meet at least one of the three design themes noted above for signs in the Civic Corridor. This would 

simplify the code, allow the Chehalem Cultural Center sign to be approved, and would set clear standards for 

signs within the Civic Corridor.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: The estimated cost of preparing the amendment, noticing, and holding hearings is 

approximately $2,000, largely in staff time. 

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: The proposed change simplifies the sign code in the Civic Corridor and 

better aligns the code with the existing design themes that help tie the corridor together. The proposed 

change will also assist the Chehalem Cultural Center to complete their sign in a way that they feel will 

improve the appearance and help establish the identity of the center. 

 

Attachments: 

 Resolution No. 2011-2939 

 Exhibit A: Potential code amendment 

 Exhibit B: Civic Corridor signs 

 

 

 

Page 10



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2939 PAGE 1 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2939 

 

 

A RESOLUTION INITIATING AN AMENDMENT TO THE NEWBERG 

DEVELOPMENT CODE REGARDING SIGNS IN THE CIVIC CORRIDOR  
 

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. The proposed Chehalem Cultural Center sign does not meet the Civic Corridor sign standards. Staff 

believes the sign is a good fit for the Civic Corridor, and that therefore the Civic Corridor sign 

standards should be reviewed. 

 

2. The Civic Corridor sign standards currently require signs to include four out of six possible design 

elements. Staff reviewed the existing signs in the Civic Corridor and determined that there are three 

design themes that tie the corridor signs together: (1) raised metal or wood letters on a background 

wall; (2) copper/brass/bronze frames or highlights; and (3) brick backgrounds or structures. The code 

could be simplified to require signs to meet at least one of the three design themes noted above for 

signs in the Civic Corridor.  

 

3. This potential amendment would simplify the code, allow the Chehalem Cultural Center sign to be 

approved, and would set clear standards for signs within the Civic Corridor.  

 

4. The City Council would like to consider a potential amendment to change the Civic Corridor sign 

standards to focus on the three identified design themes. 

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The City initiates an amendment to the Newberg Development Code that could potentially change 

the Civic Corridor design standards. The code language in Exhibit A is a starting point. 

 

Page 11



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2939 PAGE 2 
 

 

2. By initiating this amendment, the Council does not commit to taking any particular action on the 

amendment. It only wishes to consider potential amendments through a public hearing process. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: April 5, 2011. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 4
th

 day of April, 2011. 

 

 

__________________________ 

Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 7th day of April, 2011. 

 

 

____________________ 

Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

 

 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

By and through                                  Committee at       /      /          meeting.  Or,    X    None. 
     (committee name)    (date)      (check if applicable) 

Page 12



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2939 PAGE 3 
 

Exhibit A: Potential Development Code Amendment 

(Note: Additions to the code are underlined, deletions are struckthrough.) 
 

Part 18.1. CIVIC CORRIDOR OVERLAY (CC) SUB-DISTRICT 

151.526.1 PURPOSE. 

(A)    The Civic Corridor Overlay Sub-district is designed to emphasize the civic heart of the 
community and to capitalize on the significant amenity that Newberg’s historic downtown 
buildings represent. Two buildings which characterize the historic style of Newberg are City 
Hall, built in 1913 and the library, built in 1912. The important architectural features of this 
style are illustrated in the figure 
below.

 
(B)    Specific design standards will ensure that new development is consistent with the 

regional and local historical traditions that these buildings represent. While incorporating 
historic ornament and detail into new buildings is encouraged, it is recognized that the current 
cost of such detail may not be feasible. Instead, historical compatibility is better achieved by 
relating to the vertical proportions of historic facades, the depth and quality of windows and 
doors, and emulating the simple vertical massing of historical buildings. 

(C)    The CC Sub-district is intended to emphasize the civic and historic character of that 
portion of downtown Newberg generally bounded by Sherman Street on the north, Blaine 
Street on the west, 5th Street on the south, and Howard and School Streets on the east and 
as depicted on the zoning map. The sub-district overlay may be applied within any zoning 
district within these boundaries. The sub-district shall be designated by the suffix "CC" added 
to the symbol of the parent district. Permitted uses include those permitted by the underlying 

Page 13



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2939 PAGE 4 
 

zoning district and other uses specifically allowed within the CC Sub-district that are 
compatible with the uses in the underlying zoning. 
(Ord. 2002-2561, passed 4-1-02) 

151.526.2 GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

The uses, procedures, and standards contained within § 151.526.3 through § 151.526.6 
apply in addition to the development standards of the underlying zone. Where there is a 
conflict between the uses and standards of this section and those of the base zone, the uses 
and standards of this section shall prevail. 
(Ord. 2002-2561, passed 4-1-02) 

151.526.6 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS. 

In addition to the standards of § 151.197, the following development standards shall apply to 
new development or redevelopment within the Civic Corridor Overlay Sub-district. 

(E)    Signage standards. In addition to the C-3 signage requirements of § 151.590 through 
§ 151.601, to encourage the historic character of the Civic Corridor as described in § 
151.526.1, signs within the Civic Corridor shall include at least one four of the following six 
elements: 

(1)    The most prominent element on a sign, such as the business’ name, uses a serif 
font and does not exceed eight inches in height. 
(2)    The sign includes a frame, background or lettering in natural wood materials. 
(13)    The sign includes a frame, background or lettering in copper, bronze or brass in 
natural finishes, comprising at least 5 percent of the sign face. 
(2)    The sign is a freestanding brick monument sign. 
(4)    The sign incorporates decorative wrought iron. 
(35)    The sign lettering is in a raised relief, does not exceed 12 inches in height, and is 
constructed of either naturally-finished metal or white-painted wood (or material that 
appears to be wood). 
(46)    The sign is attached to a mounting bracket and allowed to swing freely. 
(Ord. 2002-2561, passed 4-1-02) 

 

End of proposed amendment. 

 

Test cases: 

Note that the Civic Corridor standards apply to new development or redevelopment only. They do not make 

any existing signs non-conforming. It is instructive to test the proposed changes on existing signs, however, 

to verify how they would apply. 

 Proposed Cultural Center sign: Would pass – meets two Civic Corridor (CC) standards. 

 Post office: Would pass – meets one CC standard. 

 Fire Dept.: Would pass – meets one CC standard. 

 Public Safety Building: Would pass – meets one CC standard. 

 City Hall: Would pass - meets one CC standard. 

 Masonic Hall brass wall sign: Would pass – meets two CC standards. Fin sign does not meet C-3 

standards, or CC standards. 

 Snooty Fox: Would pass – meets two CC standards. 

 Oregon First Community Bank: Would pass – monument sign meets two CC standards, and wall 

sign meets one CC standard. 

 Wine Country Antiques: Does not pass but could be modified to pass (by adding a copper frame, for 

Page 14

http://www.newbergoregon.gov/sites/default/files/ordinances/2500-2749/Ord2561.pdf
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15151.html#151.526
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15151.html#151.526
http://www.newbergoregon.gov/sites/default/files/ordinances/2500-2749/Ord2561.pdf
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15151.html#151.197
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15151.html#151.590
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15151.html#151.601
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15151.html#151.526
http://www.newbergoregon.gov/sites/default/files/ordinances/2500-2749/Ord2561.pdf


 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2939 PAGE 5 
 

example). (Note: for illustration only – the existing sign is not required to be changed). 

 Bike Shoppe: Does not pass but could be modified to pass (by adding a copper outline of a bike or 

wheel to the sign, for example). (Note: Existing sign is not required to be changed – historic signs 

are exempt). 

Page 15



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2939 PAGE 6 
 

Exhibit B: Civic Corridor signs 

 

Post Office (raised letters) 

 
 

 

Fire Department (raised letters) 

 
 

 

Public Safety Building (raised letters) 

 
 

Page 16



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2939 PAGE 7 
 

City Hall (raised letters) 

 
 

Word of Faith Church (raised letters) 

 
 

Masonic Hall (raised letters, bronze) 

 

 

Snooty Fox (raised letters, bronze) 

 
 

Page 17



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2939 PAGE 8 
 

 

Oregon First Community Credit Union (copper frame, brick monument) 

 
 

 

Proposed Chehalem Cultural Center sign (raised letters, bronze) 

 

Page 18



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2939 PAGE 8 
 

Wine Country Antiques 

 
 

 

Newbery Bicycle Shoppe 

 
 

Page 19



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 20



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2940 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: April 4, 2011 
Order       Ordinance  _   Resolution  XX   Motion  __   Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2011-2940 

SUBJECT:  A resolution authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into a professional services 
agreement with Group Mackenzie, to provide design 
services for the Fire Station 20 Remodel Project. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Jason Wuertz, PE, Project Manager and 
                Rob Charles, Public Works Director 
Dept.:      Public Works Department - Engineering 
File No.:  
                            (if applicable)  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  

Adopt Resolution No. 2011-2940, authorizing the City Manager to enter into a professional services 
agreement with Group Mackenzie, to provide design services for the Fire Station 20 Remodel 
Project. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
The existing Fire Station 20 was built in 1933 and was converted from a livestock barn into a fire station. 
Since then there have been several additions to the station with the most recent being a seismic upgrade in 
1999. The station poses several health and safety hazards as well as limited space for the housing of 
firefighters.  
 
This project will address firefighter health and safety concerns as well as allow additional space to increase 
firefighter staffing. Some of the proposed improvements include providing diesel exhaust cleaning systems, 
adding bunk rooms and a physical training room, HVAC improvements, enclosing the turnout gear, 
updating the kitchen and replacing outdated surfaces throughout the building. 
 
An American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Assistance to Firefighters Fire Station Construction 
Grant has been awarded to the Newberg Fire Department for the amount of $764,225.00  As part of this 
grant, $87,898.00 must be awarded for architectural and engineering fees.   
 
On February 15, 2011 the City staff solicited Request for Proposals (RFP’s) from any and all qualified 
design consulting firms.  Nine consulting firms submitted proposals on March 8, 2011.  Three of those 
consultants were interviewed on March 15, 2011:  Barrentine Bates Lee Architects, Bridgetown Design, and 
Group Mackenzie. 
 
Based on the selection committee’s evaluation, the Director of Public Works recommends that the City 
Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a professional services agreement with Group Mackenzie, 
to provide design and construction services for the Fire Station 20 Remodel Project in an amount not-to-
exceed $77,986.00. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The FY 10/11 and 11/12 budgets can support this contract pending receipt of ARRA 
funding. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  This project will address firefighter health and safety concerns as well as 
allow additional space to increase firefighter staffing which will improve the firefighter’s ability to serve the 
citizens of Newberg. 

Page 21



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2940 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH GROUP MACKENZIE, TO 
PROVIDE DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE FIRE STATION 20 REMODEL 
PROJECT 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 

1. The Fire Station 20 was built in 1933 and poses several health and safety hazards as well as limited 
space for the housing of firefighters 

 
2. The City has applied for and received a grant totaling $764,225.00 from the American Recovery and 

Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Assistance to Firefighters Fire Station Construction.  The Architectural 
and Engineering fee portion of this grant is $87,898.00. 
 

3. On February 15, 2011 the City staff solicited Request for Proposals (RFP’s) from qualified design 
consultants.  Nine consulting firms submitted proposals on March 8, 2011.  Three of those 
consultants were interviewed on March 15, 2011: Barrentine Bates Lee Architects, Bridgetown 
Design, and Group Mackenzie.   
 

4. Based on the selection committee’s evaluation, the Director of Public Works recommends that the 
City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a professional services agreement with Group 
Mackenzie, to provide design and construction services for the Fire Station 20 Remodel Project in  
an amount not-to-exceed $77,986.00. 

 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The City Council, acting as Contract Review Board for the City, does hereby authorize the City 
Manager to enter into a professional services agreement in an amount not-to-exceed $77,986.00 with 
Group Mackenzie, the recommended firm for the Fire Station 20 Remodel Project. 
  

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is:  April 5, 2011. 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 4th day of April 2011. 

 
 
__________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 7th day of April 2011. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2940 PAGE 1 

Page 22



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2941 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: April 4, 2011 
Order       Ordinance  _   Resolution  XX   Motion  ___ Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2011-2941 

SUBJECT:  A resolution authorizing the City 
Manager to issue a task order to provide pre-
construction services for the Secondary Clarifier 
Design in the amount of $118,292.00 as part of the 
approved contract with M.A. Mortenson 
Construction.  

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Larry Fain, Project Manager and  
               Rob Charles, Public Works Director 
Dept.:    Public Works Department - Engineering 
File No.:  
                            (if applicable)  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Adopt Resolution No. 2011-2941.  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The City of Newberg awarded a Construction Manager/General Contractor (CM/GC) contract to M.A. 
Mortenson Construction for the pre-construction and construction services for the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant (WWTP) Repair, Renovation and Expansion (RRE) Project.  City Council authorized that contract by 
Resolution 2009-2876 on December 7, 2009.  That resolution authorized a not-to-exceed amount of 
$50,000.00 for initial start up work, however that work was never started and the $50,000.00 was not spent. 
 
The City is now about to begin design efforts on the construction of a fourth clarifier at the WWTP.  As part 
of the design, M.A. Mortenson Construction will be providing pre-construction services.  Those services, 
shown in Exhibit “A”, include assisting and evaluating the on-going design effort to ensure that economical 
decisions related to materials and methods are integrated into the design to result in the lowest possible 
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Proposal at the end of the design.  The City staff has negotiated the cost 
for these pre-construction services to be in the amount of $118,292.00.  
 
The Public Works Director recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to issue a task 
order in the amount of $118,292.00 to the existing CM/GC contract with M.A. Mortenson Construction for 
the pre-construction services involved with the design of the fourth WWTP clarifier.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The FY 10/11 and 11/12 budgets can support this contract upon receipt of Clean Water State Revolving 
Fund funding.  Funding details are shown in Exhibit “B”.  
  
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
This project will ensure that Newberg has a well designed fourth clarifier as part of the WWTP RRE 
Project. 

Page 23



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2941 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ISSUE A TASK 
ORDER TO PROVIDE PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR THE 
SECONDARY CLARIFIER DESIGN IN THE AMOUNT OF $118,292.00 AS 
PART OF THE APPROVED CONTRACT WITH M.A. MORTENSON 
CONSTRUCTION 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 

1. The City of Newberg awarded a Construction Manager/General Contractor (CM/GC) contract to 
M.A. Mortenson Construction for the preconstruction and construction services for the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant (WWTP) Repair, Renovation and Expansion (RRE) Project.  City Council 
authorized that contract by Resolution 2009-2876 on December 7, 2009.  
 

2. Resolution 2009-2876 authorized a not-to-exceed amount of $50,000.00 for initial start up work, 
however that work was never started and that $50,000.00 was not spent. 

 
3. The City is starting design efforts on the construction of a fourth clarifier at the WWTP.   
 
4. As part of that design M.A. Mortenson Construction will be providing pre-construction services, as 

detailed in Exhibit “A”.  Exhibit “A” is hereby attached and by this reference incorporated.   
 
5. The City staff has negotiated the cost of these pre-construction services to be $118,292.00. 
 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The City Council, acting as the Local Contract Review Board, does hereby authorize the City 
Manager to issue a task order as part of the existing CM/GC services contract with M.A. Mortenson 
Construction in the amount of $118,292.00 as outlined in Exhibit “A”, which is attached and by this 
reference adopted.  Funding details are shown in Exhibit “B”, which is attached and by this 
reference adopted. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: April 5, 2011. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 4th day of April 2011. 
 
__________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 7th day of April 2011. 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2941 PAGE 1 

Page 24



PRE-CONSTRUCTION WORK PLAN
CITY OF NEWBERG
NEWBERG WWTP IMPROVEMENTS - SC #4

March 14, 2011

RESPONSIBILITY HOURS RATE EXTENSION

Task 1: PROJECT SET-UP
Task 1.2 Construction Plan (safety, quality, disruption avoidance plans, 
startup/commx, site logistics and document management)

Construction Executive 8 140$               1,120$                   
Sr. Project Manager 20 112$               2,240$                   
Project Manager 40 112$               4,480$                   
Superintendent 40 98$                 3,920$                   
Safety Mgr 16 98$                 1,568$                   
Quality Mgr 16 98$                 1,568$                   
MEP Systems Engineer 16 97$                 1,552$                   

Subtotal 156 16,448$                 

Task 1.3 Construction Contract Packaging
Sr. Project Manager 16 140$               2,240$                   
Project Manager 80 112$               8,960$                   
Superintendent 24 98$                 2,352$                   
MEP Systems Engineer 16 97$                 1,552$                   

Subtotal 136 15,104$                 

Subtotal  Task 1 Project Set-Up 292 31,552$                 

Task 2: MEETINGS

2.1  Project Kick-off /Partnering Meeting
Construction Executive 8 140$               1,120$                   
Sr. Project Manager 8 112$               896$                      
Project Manager 8 112$               896$                      
Superintendent 8 98$                 784$                      
Sr. Estimator 8 108$               864$                      

-$                       
Subtotal 40 4,560$                   

2.2.1  Regular Meetings - Owner / Design Team
Construction Executive -$               -$                       
Sr. Project Manager 22 112$               2,464$                   
Project Manager 22 112$               2,464$                   
Superintendent 22 98$                 2,156$                   
Sr. Estimator 44 108$               4,752$                   

Subtotal 110 11,836$                 

Subtotal  Task 2 Meetings 150 16,396$                 

Task 3 COST ESTIMATING

3.1 - 30% Design Estimate (incl Designer and Owner Review Mtgs)
Construction Executive 24 140$               3,360$                   
Sr. Project Manager 24 112$               2,688$                   
Project Manager 24 112$               2,688$                   
Superintendent 24 98$                 2,352$                   
Chief Estimator 16 145$               2,320$                   

4 Week Total Duration

Assume a 5.5 Month Duration

Assume Monthly

Page: 1 of 3 Printed: 3/14/2011Page 25

Exhibit "A" 
to Resolution No. 2011-2941



PRE-CONSTRUCTION WORK PLAN
CITY OF NEWBERG
NEWBERG WWTP IMPROVEMENTS - SC #4

March 14, 2011

RESPONSIBILITY HOURS RATE EXTENSION

Sr. Estimator 80 108$               8,640$                   
Estimator 80 57$                 4,560$                   
MEP Systems Engineer 16 97$                 1,552$                   
Support Staff 4 36$                 144$                      

Subtotal 292 28,304$                 

3.1.1 - Estimating Evaluation of Alternatives / Reconciliation
Sr. Project Manager 8 112$               896$                      
Superintendent 4 98$                 392$                      
Sr. Estimator 16 108$               1,728$                   

Subtotal 28 3,016$                   

Subtotal  Baseline Estimate 320 31,320$                 

Task 3.4: Construction Cost Estimate Updates - GMP

3.4 GMP Estimate
Sr. Project Manager 8 112$               896$                      
Project Manager 8 112$               896$                      
Superintendent 8 98$                 784$                      
Chief Estimator 16 145$               2,320$                   
Sr. Estimator 40 108$               4,320$                   
Estimator 40 57$                 2,280$                   
MEP Systems Engineer 8 97$                 776$                      
Support Staff 4 36$                 144$                      

Subtotal 132 12,416$                 

Subtotal GMP Estimate 132 12,416$                 

3.4 GMP Negotiation
-$                       

Subtotal  GMP Estimate

Subtotal  Task 3 Estimates 452 43,736$                 

Task 4: CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULES

4.1 Draft Construction Baseline Schedule
Project Manager 8 112$               896$                      
Superintendent 40 98$                 3,920$                   
Scheduling Engineer 24 95$                 2,280$                   

Subtotal 72 7,096$                   

4.2/4.3 Update Schedule At Each Estimate
Project Manager 4 112$               448$                      
Superintendent 8 98$                 784$                      
Scheduling Engineer 16 95$                 1,520$                   

1 Update (GMP)

NO CHARGE

NO CHARGE

Page: 2 of 3 Printed: 3/14/2011Page 26

Exhibit "A" 
to Resolution No. 2011-2941



PRE-CONSTRUCTION WORK PLAN
CITY OF NEWBERG
NEWBERG WWTP IMPROVEMENTS - SC #4

March 14, 2011

RESPONSIBILITY HOURS RATE EXTENSION

Subtotal 28 2,752$                   

Subtotal  Task 4 Construction Schedules 100 9,848$                   

Task 5.2: MISCELLANEOUS 

5.2.1 BIM & VDC - Precon Phase only
Project Manager 8 112$               896$                      
Superintendent 16 98$                 1,568$                   
Integrated Construction Coordinator 120 70$                 8,400$                   

Subtotal 144 10,864$                 

5.2.2 Permit Coordination 
Project Manager 8 112$               896$                      

Subtotal 8 896$                      

Subtotal Task 5 Subject Specific Review Meetings 152 11,760$                 

Misc Materials/Expenses for the Above 1,500$                   
Allowance for Additional Services Authorized by Owner 3,500$                   

Subtotal Additional Services Allowance 5,000$                   

DIRECT COST -  PRE-CONSTRUCTION 1,146              118,292$               

GRAND TOTAL PRE-CONSTRUCTION 118,292$               

Notes
1) Travel/parking costs are included in above rates
2) Document production and plan costs are reimbursable expenses to be paid by Owner and are not included in the above

Personnel Hour Summary
Total Hours FTE

Construction Executive 40 0.04
Sr. Project Manager 118 0.12
Project Manager 198 0.21
Superintendent 194 0.20
Chief Estimator 32 0.03
Sr. Estimator 188 0.20
Estimator 120 0.13
Safety Engineer 16 0.02
Quality Engineer 16 0.02
Scheduling Engineer 40 0.04
MEP Systems Engineer 56 0.06
Integrated Construction Coordinator 120 0.13
Support Staff 8 0.01

Page: 3 of 3 Printed: 3/14/2011Page 27

Exhibit "A" 
to Resolution No. 2011-2941



FY
 1

0/
11

FY
11

/1
2

FY
12

/1
3

$7
,6

00
,0

00
$

7
,6

0
0

,0
0

0

H
D

R
 T

O
 #

 1
C

M
/G

C
 S

o
lic

it
a

ti
o

n
 (

R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t)
$

1
4

8
,3

1
5

$
7

,4
5

1
,6

8
5

$
1

4
8

,3
1

5
$

0
$

0

H
D

R
 T

O
 #

 3
C

o
n

c
e

p
t 

D
e

s
ig

n
 R

e
v
ie

w
 (

R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t)
$

7
6

,5
5

0
$

7
,3

7
5

,1
3

5
$

7
6

,5
5

0
$

0
$

0

H
D

R
 T

O
 #

 4
A

C
la

ri
fi
e

r 
#

 4
 D

e
s
ig

n
 S

ta
rt

 (
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t)

$
1

0
0

,0
0

0
$

7
,2

7
5

,1
3

5
$

1
0

0
,0

0
0

$
0

$
0

H
D

R
 T

O
 #

 5
-A

F
lo

w
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 (

R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t)
$

3
1

,5
1

0
$

7
,2

4
3

,6
2

5
$

3
1

,5
1

0
$

0
$

0

H
D

R
 T

O
 #

 4
B

C
la

rif
ie

r #
 4

 D
es

ig
n 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

$
4

9
0

,4
0

7
$

6
,7

5
3

,2
1

8
$

3
6

3
,4

0
7

$
1

2
7

,0
0

0
$

0

H
D

R
 T

O
 #

 4
C

U
rg

e
n

t 
W

W
T

P
 R

e
p

a
ir

s
$

6
4

,2
6

6
$

6
,6

8
8

,9
5

2
$

6
0

,0
0

0
$

4
,2

6
6

$
0

C
M

/G
C

 1
-A

P
re

c
o

n
. 

S
v
c
s
. 

(T
O

 #
 4

, 
C

la
ri

fi
e

r)
$

1
1

8
,2

9
2

$
6

,5
7

0
,6

6
0

$9
0,

00
0

$2
8,

29
2

$0
H

D
R

 T
O

 #
 1

7
Pr

el
im

. D
es

ig
n 

R
ep

or
t (

D
EQ

)
$

3
8

8
,0

0
0

$
6

,1
8

2
,6

6
0

$
3

5
0

,0
0

0
$

3
8

,0
0

0
$

0

M
o

re
n

ts
o

n
 C

M
/G

C
 1

-B
P

re
c
o

n
. 

S
v
c
s
. 

(T
O

 #
 1

7
, 

P
D

R
)

$3
5,

00
0

$
6

,1
4

7
,6

6
0

$3
2,

00
0

$3
,0

00
$0

H
D

R
 T

O
 #

 1
6

-A
C

M
/G

C
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

O
v
e

rs
ig

h
t

$2
5,

00
0

$
6

,1
2

2
,6

6
0

$1
0,

00
0

$1
5,

00
0

$0
H

D
R

 T
O

 #
 1

0
D

is
in

fe
ct

io
n/

D
e-

ch
lo

rin
at

io
n 

D
es

ig
n

$1
90

,0
00

$
5

,9
3

2
,6

6
0

$3
0,

00
0

$1
60

,0
00

$0
M

o
re

n
ts

o
n

 C
M

/G
C

 1
-C

P
re

c
o

n
. 

S
v
c
s
. 

(T
O

 #
 1

0
, 

D
is

in
fe

c
ti
o

n
/D

e
-C

h
$4

5,
00

0
$

5
,8

8
7

,6
6

0
$5

,0
00

$4
0,

00
0

$0
H

D
R

 T
O

 #
 1

6
-B

C
M

/G
C

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

O
v
e

rs
ig

h
t

$1
0,

00
0

$
5

,8
7

7
,6

6
0

$0
$1

0,
00

0
$0

M
o

re
n

ts
o

n
 D

O
 #

 3
C

la
rif

ie
r #

 4
 &

 U
rg

en
t R

ep
ai

rs
 C

on
st

ru
ct

$4
,4

70
,0

00
$

1
,4

0
7

,6
6

0
$5

0,
00

0
$4

,4
20

,0
00

$0
H

D
R

 T
O

 #
 5

-B
Fl

ow
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

Ph
as

e 
2

$
2

4
,4

0
0

$
1

,3
8

3
,2

6
0

$
0

$
2

4
,4

0
0

$
0

$1
,3

00
,0

00
$

2
,6

8
3

,2
6

0

M
o

re
n

ts
o

n
 D

O
 #

 8
D

is
in

fe
ct

io
n/

D
e-

ch
lo

rin
at

io
n 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

$1
,6

75
,0

00
$

1
,0

0
8

,2
6

0
$0

$1
,6

75
,0

00
$0

H
D

R
 T

O
 #

 7
-A

H
ea

dw
or

ks
 D

es
ig

n
$

7
9

5
,2

8
6

$
2

1
2

,9
7

4
$

0
$

7
9

5
,2

8
6

$
0

M
o

re
n

ts
o

n
 C

M
/G

C
 1

-D
P

re
c
o

n
. 

S
v
c
s
. 

(T
O

 #
 7

A
, 

H
e

a
d

w
o

rk
s
)

$1
50

,0
00

$
6

2
,9

7
4

$0
$1

50
,0

00
$0

$2
,5

00
,0

00
$

2
,5

6
2

,9
7

4

H
D

R
 T

O
 #

 7
-B

W
yn

oo
sk

i P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
 D

es
ig

n
$

5
3

7
,6

0
0

$
2

,0
2

5
,3

7
4

$
0

$
5

3
7

,6
0

0
$

0

M
o

re
n

ts
o

n
 C

M
/G

C
 1

-E
P

re
c
o

n
. 

S
v
c
s
. 

(T
O

 #
 7

B
, 

W
y
n

o
o

s
k
i 
P

S
)

$8
5,

00
0

$
1

,9
4

0
,3

7
4

$0
$8

5,
00

0
$0

H
D

R
 T

O
 #

 9
D

ew
at

er
in

g 
 D

es
ig

n
$4

20
,0

00
$

1
,5

2
0

,3
7

4
$0

$4
20

,0
00

$0
M

o
re

n
ts

o
n

 C
M

/G
C

 1
-G

P
re

c
o

n
. 

S
v
c
s
. 

(T
O

 #
 9

, 
D

e
w

a
te

ri
n

g
)

$3
6,

00
0

$
1

,4
8

4
,3

7
4

$0
$3

6,
00

0
$0

H
D

R
 T

O
 #

 8
O

xi
da

tio
n 

D
itc

h 
# 

3 
&

 R
ep

ai
rs

 D
es

ig
n

$6
50

,0
00

$
8

3
4

,3
7

4
$0

$6
50

,0
00

$
0

M
o

re
n

ts
o

n
 C

M
/G

C
 1

-F
P

re
c
o

n
. 

S
v
c
s
. 

(T
O

 #
 8

, 
O

D
 #

3
 &

 R
p

rs
)

$5
6,

00
0

$
7

7
8

,3
7

4
$0

$5
6,

00
0

$0
H

D
R

 T
O

 #
 1

1
O

ut
fa

ll,
 In

-P
la

nt
 W

or
k 

D
es

ig
n

$1
20

,0
00

$
6

5
8

,3
7

4
$0

$1
20

,0
00

$0
M

o
re

n
ts

o
n

 C
M

/G
C

 1
-H

P
re

c
o

n
. 

S
v
c
s
. 

(T
O

 #
 1

1
, 

O
u

tf
a

ll,
 e

tc
)

$3
2,

00
0

$
6

2
6

,3
7

4
$0

$3
2,

00
0

$0
H

D
R

 T
O

 #
 1

6
-C

C
M

/G
C

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

O
v
e

rs
ig

h
t

$1
5,

00
0

$
6

1
1

,3
7

4
$0

$1
5,

00
0

$0
N

/A
O

th
e

r 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 a
s
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

$2
0,

00
0

$
5

9
1

,3
7

4
$0

$1
0,

00
0

$1
0,

00
0

N
/A

P
e

rm
it
s
, 

F
e

e
s

$2
80

,0
00

$
3

1
1

,3
7

4
$0

$1
30

,0
00

$1
50

,0
00

H
D

R
 T

O
 #

 1
2

-A
Ad

m
in

 B
ld

g,
 e

tc
  D

es
ig

n
$1

30
,0

00
$

1
8

1
,3

7
4

$0
$0

$1
30

,0
00

H
D

R
 T

O
 #

 1
2

-B
Al

l O
th

er
 W

or
k 

D
es

ig
n

$1
90

,0
00

-$
8

,6
2

6
$0

$0
$1

90
,0

00
M

o
re

n
ts

o
n

 C
M

/G
C

 1
-I

P
re

c
o

n
. 

S
v
c
s
. 

(T
O

 #
 1

2
A

-B
, 

A
d

m
in

 &
 O

th
e

 
$6

5,
00

0
-$

7
3

,6
2

6
$0

$0
$6

5,
00

0

Fi
na

l N
ew

be
rg

 D
ra

w
 o

n 
th

e 
$1

1.
4 

M

In
iti

al
 N

ew
be

rg
 D

ra
w

 o
n 

th
e 

$1
1.

4 
M

Se
co

nd
 N

ew
be

rg
 D

ra
w

 o
n 

th
e 

$1
1.

4 
M

W
ha

t w
e 

m
ig

ht
 fu

nd
 If

 w
e 

ha
d 

$ 
11

.4
M

Ta
sk

 O
rd

er
s 

an
d 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

D
el

iv
er

y 
O

rd
er

s
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Ac

tu
al

 C
os

ts
/ 

Es
tim

at
ed

 
C

os
ts

B
al

an
ce

Pr
ed

ic
te

d 
B

le
ed

 R
at

e 
by

 F
Y

Page 28

Exhibit "B" 
To Resolution No. 2011-2941



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2942 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: April 4, 2011 
Order       Ordinance  _   Resolution  XX   Motion  __   Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2011-2942 

SUBJECT:  Initiating amendments to Newberg 
Development Code Chapter 15.235 pertaining to 
technical specifications and signature requirements 
for partition and subdivision plats. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:       Annette de Paz, City Surveyor 
Dept.:          Public Works Engineering 
File No.:      N/A 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  

Adopt Resolution No. 2011-2942.  
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Newberg Development Code §15.235.030 to §15.235.190 contain detailed specifications for the 
submittal of tentative and final subdivision and partition plats such as drafting material, scale, and 
coordinate system, including accessory submittals such as title reports and legal descriptions.  These 
code sections contain inconsistencies in the use of technical terminology such as “plat,” “block,” and 
“average.”  This section includes city signature requirements which are not consistent with current city 
administrative processes, and which do not consistently provide for city acceptance of infrastructure, 
easements, and land dedications on behalf of the public. 

 
The City Surveyor proposes to clean up the terminology and consistency of the language in the chapter 
while updating the specifications to reflect current professional practices and administrative processing 
procedures of governing bodies. 

 
Newberg Development Code §15.100.060 defines an amendment to Newberg Development Code as a 
legislative action requiring a Type IV Procedure.  The Type IV Procedure requires the Planning 
Commission to hold a public hearing and make a recommendation to the City Council followed by 
another public hearing held by the City Council prior to making a final decision.  Oregon Revised 
Statutes (ORS) 92.048 further specifies public noticing and recordation requirements for amendments to 
regulations governing standards and procedures adopted by cities or counties for approval of tentative 
and final subdivision and partition plats.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
Detailed specifications contained in the Municipal Code pertaining to preparation, review, official 
signature and archiving of tentative and permanent documents are maintained in order to represent 
current internal administrative procedures and the requirements of other governing bodies. 
 
 
 

Page 29



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2942 
 
 

A RESOLUTION INITIATING AMENDMENTS TO NEWBERG 
DEVELOPMENT CODE CHAPTER 15.235 PERTAINING TO 
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS AND SIGNATURE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
PARTITION AND SUBDIVISION PLATS 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. Newberg Development Code §15.235.030 to §15.235.190 contain detailed specifications for the 

submittal and official signature of tentative and final subdivision and partition plats. 
 

2. Technical specifications contained in Newberg Municipal Code may be updated from time to 
time to reflect the changing standards and practices of industry professionals and governing 
bodies. 

 
3. Newberg Development Code §15.100.060 defines an amendment to Newberg Development 

Code as a legislative action requiring a Type IV Procedure. 
 
4. Oregon Revised Statute §92.048 provides procedural guidelines for amendments to local 

regulations for approval of tentative and final subdivision and partition plats. 
 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The City Council hereby initiates amendments, through the review process, to Newberg 

Development Code Chapter 15.235.  The proposed amendments are shown in Exhibit “A,” 
which is attached.  Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated.  

 
2. The City Council hereby directs staff to guide the initiated amendment through the public 

hearing and review process as required by the Type IV Procedure as provided in Newberg 
Development Code §15.100.060. 
 

3. The City Council hereby directs staff to comply with additional procedural guidelines required 
by Oregon Revised Statute §92.048. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: April 5, 2011. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 4th day of April 2011. 
 
__________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 7th day of April 2011. 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2011-2942 PAGE 1 

Page 30



Chapter 15.235 
SUBDIVISIONS 

Sections: 

Article I. Land Division Procedures 

15.235.010    Division of land. 
15.235.020    Tentative plan application and copies. 
15.235.030    Partition applications. 
15.235.040    Partition requirements – Type II. 
15.235.050    Subdivision applications. 
15.235.060    Subdivision requirements – Type II and Type III. 
15.235.070    Future street plan required. 
15.235.080    Type III future street plan. 
15.235.090    Recording and filing a future street plan. 
15.235.100    Revision of a future street plan. 
15.235.110    Criteria for approval of a future street plan. 
15.235.120    Tentative plan expiration date. 
15.235.130    Extension of partitions and subdivisions. 
15.235.140    Modifications of an approved tentative plan. 
15.235.150    Final partition map and subdivision plats – Drafting requirements. 
15.235.160    Submission and review of final partition or subdivision plat or final partition 

map. 
15.235.170    Information required. 
15.235.180    Approval signatures for final partition map and subdivision plats. 
Article II. Standards for Land Divisions 
15.235.190    Dedication. 
15.235.200    Lot and parcel side lines. 
15.235.210    Suitability for intended use. 
15.235.220    Future subdivision or partition of lots or parcels. 
15.235.230    Platting standards. 

Article I. Land Division Procedures 

15.235.010 Division of land. 
No land may be divided without first obtaining a development permit. 

A. No land may be divided prior to approval of a partition or subdivision in accordance with this 
code. 

B. A land division is processed by approving a tentative plan prior to approval of the final land 
division plat or map. Land divisions shall be processed under the Type II procedure unless a 

Page 31



hearing is requested pursuant to NMC 15.100.040(G). These procedures shall apply to the 
tentative plan approval. If there is compliance with the approved tentative plan requirements and 
conditions, the director shall approve final plats and maps for land divisions as a Type I 
development permit. [Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.240.1.] 

15.235.020 Tentative plan application and copies. 
An application for tentative plan approval of a land division shall be made by the person 
proposing the land division on a form provided by the director and meeting the submittal 
requirements identified in this code and in the application provided by the director. [Ord. 2619, 
5-16-05; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.240.2.] 

15.235.030 Partition applications. 
The tentative plan shall be drawn with pencil or India ink on a good quality linen tracing cloth or 
suitable drafting material having the same or better characteristics of strength, stability and 
transparency and shall show all pertinent information to scale. The scale shall be standard, being 
stated in multiples of 10.one inch equals 10 feet, 20 feet, 30 feet, 40 feet, 50 feet, 100 feet or 
multiples of 100 feet. The tentative plan shall contain the following information: 

A. Date, north point, scale, dimensions of all lines and a vicinity map locating the partitioning in 
relation to the surrounding area. 

B. Name and address of the land owner, all title holders, subdivider, mortgagee, if any, and the 
surveyor employed to make necessary surveys and prepare the description of each tract involved. 

C. A statement regarding contemplated wastewater disposal systems and water supply systems. 

D. For land adjacent to and within the tract to be partitioned, the locations, names and existing 
widths of streets, location and size of wastewater and water lines (including laterals, drainage 
ways, and the location of power poles and any easements). 

E. Outline and location of existing buildings, trees and features to remain in place. 

F. Outline and location of existing buildings, trees, and features to be removed. 

G. Contour lines related to federal or city data and statement of reference datum. 

H. Legal description for each newly created parcel. 

IH. Preliminary site grading and utility plan. 

JI. Such additional information as is required by the director. [Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord. 2451, 
12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.241.1.] 

Page 32



15.235.040 Partition requirements – Type II. 
The director shall approve a partition of three parcels or less under a Type II procedure if the 
resulting parcels comply with the following approval criteria: 

A. Approval does not impede the future best use of the remainder of the property under the same 
ownership or adversely affect the reasonable development of such remainder or adjoining land or 
access thereto. 

B. The partition complies with this code and implementing ordinances and resolutions. 

C. Either: 

1. Improvements to be completed as part of the partition will be completed prior to final 
plat approval; or 

2. The partitioner will substantially complete, as defined by city policies, required 
improvements prior to final plat approval, and enter into a performance agreement to 
complete the remaining improvements. The performance agreement shall include security 
in a form acceptable to the city in sufficient amount to insure the completion of all required 
improvements; or 

3. A local improvement district shall have been formed to complete the required 
improvements; or 

4. The required improvements are contained in a city or other government agency capital 
improvement project that is budgeted and scheduled for construction. [Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; 
Ord. 2529, 7-3-00; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.241.2.] 

15.235.050 Subdivision applications. 
A. Drafting. The tentative plan shall show all pertinent information to scale, normally at a scale 
of one inch equals 100 feet. For subdivision, the scale may be increased or decreased to fit 
standard size sheets of 18 inches by 24 inches. However, in all multiples of 100 feet to the inch. 
The scale shall be stated in multiples of 10.Tentative plans for subdivisions shall be prepared by 
an Oregon registered engineer or Oregon licensed land surveyor. 

B. Information Required. The application itself or the tentative plan must contain the following 
information with respect to the subject area: 

1. Name and block numbering of proposed subdivisions. Except for the words “town,” 
“city,” “place,” “court,” “addition,” or similar words, the name shall be clearly different 
than, and clearly pronounced differently than, the name of any other subdivision in the 
county, unless the subject subdivision is contiguous to or platted by the same party that 
platted the preceding subdivision bearing that name. All subdivisions must continue the 
block lot numbers of the subdivision of the same name last filed. 

Page 33



2. The date, north point, and scale of the drawing, and sufficient description to define the 
location and boundaries of the proposed subdivision and the names of all recorded 
subdivisions contiguous to such area. 

3. The names and addresses of the owner and engineer or surveyor. 

4. The location of existing and proposed right-of-way lines for existing or projected streets 
as shown on the transportation system plan. 

5. The locations, names, and widths and grades of all existing and proposed streets and 
roads. 

6. Contours on the site and within 100 feet of the site and statement of reference datum. 

a. One-foot contour intervals for ground slopes up to five percent. 

b. Two-foot contour intervals for ground slopes between five and 10 percent. 

c. Five-foot contour intervals for ground slopes exceeding 10 percent. 

7. Preliminary site grading plan, prepared by an Oregon registered engineer or land 
surveyor. 

8. The approximate width and location of all existing and proposed easements for public 
utilities, and all reserve strips proposed to satisfy requirements which may be required as 
provided for in NMC 15.505.080. 

9. The approximate radii of all curves. 

10. The general design of the proposed subdivision including the approximate dimension of 
all proposed lots and parcels tracts. 

11. The approximate location of areas subject to inundation of stormwater, and the 
approximate location, average width, and direction or of flow of all watercourses. 

12. The existing and proposed uses of the property, including the location of all existing 
structures that the applicant intends will remain in the subject area. 

13. The domestic water system proposed to be installed, including the source, quality, and 
quantity of water, if from other than a public water supply. 

14. All proposals for wastewater disposal, flood control and easements or deeds for 
drainage land, including profiles of proposed drainage ways. 

Page 34



15. All public areas proposed to be dedicated by the applicant and the proposed uses of the 
public areas. 

16. All public improvements proposed to be made or installed, and the time within which 
such improvements are envisioned to be completed. 

17. A legal description and drawing of the boundaries of the entire area owned by the 
applicant of which the proposed subdivision is a part; provided, that where the proposal 
comprises all of such area a written statement of such fact shall accompany the tentative 
plan. 

18. Outline and location of existing buildings, features, and trees (in excess of four inches 
dbh) to remain in place on the site and within 100 feet of the site. 

19. Outline and location of existing buildings, features, and trees (in excess of four inches 
dbh) to be removed on the site. 

20. Such additional information as is required by the director. 

C. Traffic Study. A traffic study shall be submitted for any project that generates in excess of 40 
trips per p.m. peak hour. This requirement may be waived by the director when a determination 
is made that a previous traffic study adequately addresses the proposal and/or when off-site and 
frontage improvements have already been completed which adequately mitigate any traffic 
impacts and/or the proposed use is not in a location which is adjacent to an intersection which is 
functioning at a poor level of service. A traffic study may be required by the director for projects 
below 40 trips per p.m. peak hour where the use is located immediately adjacent to an 
intersection functioning at a poor level of service. The traffic study shall be conducted according 
to the City of Newberg design standards. [Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord. 2507, 3-1-99; Ord. 2451, 12-
2-96. Code 2001 § 151.242.1.] 

15.235.060 Subdivision requirements – Type II and Type III. 
A. The director (Type II) or planning commission (Type III) shall approve a subdivision of four 
parcels lots or more under a Type II or Type III procedure if the resulting parcels lots comply 
with the following approval criteria: 

1. Approval does not impede the future best use of the remainder of the property under the 
same ownership or adversely affect the safe and healthful development of such remainder 
or adjoining land or access thereto. 

2. The subdivision complies with this code including but not limited to NMC 15.340.010 
through 15.440.080 and NMC 15.235.030 et seq. 

3. Either: 

Page 35



a. Required Iimprovements required to be completed prior to final plat approval; or 

b. The subdivider will substantially complete, as defined by city policies, required 
improvements prior to final plat approval, and enter into a performance agreement to 
complete the remaining improvements. The performance agreement shall include 
security in a form acceptable to the city in sufficient amount to insure completion of 
all required improvements; or 

c. A local improvement district shall have been formed to complete the required 
improvements; or 

d. The required improvements are contained in a city or other government agency 
capital improvement project that is budgeted and scheduled for construction. 

B. A subdivision shall be processed under the Type II or Type III procedure. Notice shall be 
mailed to the applicant and those identified by this code to receive notice. [Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; 
Ord. 2529, 7-3-00; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.242.2.] 

15.235.070 Future street plan required. 
A. A future street plan shall not be required for any portion of an area for which a proposed street 
layout has been established by either the Newberg comprehensive plan, its implementing 
ordinances, or a future street plan previously approved by a hearing body. 

B. A future street plan is a conceptual plan in that its adoption does not establish a precise 
alignment. The plan shall demonstrate how access can be provided to adjoining parcels. The 
director may require that a traffic study be submitted where access to the land division includes 
streets that are classified as a collector or greater functional classification status. 

C. Except as provided in subsection (A) of this section, a future street plan shall be filed and 
reviewed as part of an application for a partition or subdivision. [Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord. 2451, 
12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.243.1.] 

15.235.080 Type III future street plan. 
The city council or planning commission may initiate a future street plan for any area which 
impacts traffic conditions inside the urban growth boundary, providing the street plan is given 
consideration through a Type III procedure. [Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.244.] 

15.235.090 Recording and filing a future street plan. 
Upon final approval, a future street plan shall be recorded with the county recorder’s office as 
follows: 

A. Evidence of recordation shall be provided to the director by the applicant; or if there is no 
applicant, the director shall record the future street plan. 

Page 36



B. Filed by the director in the future street plan index. [Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 
§ 151.245.] 

15.235.100 Revision of a future street plan. 
An approved future street plan may be revised by the director under a Type II procedure in 
conjunction with a land division application or by the planning commission under a Type III 
procedure. An approved future street plan may be revised by the city council in conjunction with 
a revision of the Newberg comprehensive plan or implementing ordinances or resolutions. [Ord. 
2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.246.] 

15.235.110 Criteria for approval of a future street plan. 
A. Approval does not impede the future best use of the remainder of the property under the same 
ownership or adversely affect the safe and healthful development of such remainder or any 
adjoining land or access thereto; and 

B. The future street plan complies with this code and its implementing ordinances and 
resolutions, and standards and policies of the Newberg comprehensive plan and the Newberg 
transportation system plan. 

C. Except as provided by the provisions of this code, approval as stipulated herein does not 
relieve the applicant from other applicable provisions of the Oregon Revised Statutes or 
contained elsewhere in this code. 

D. The future street plan shall adequately serve traffic with an origin in, and destination to, the 
area of the plan. 

E. The future street plan shall provide for the logical extension of streets, to serve circulation and 
access needs within a district or neighborhood. [Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 
2001 § 151.247.] 

15.235.120 Tentative plan expiration date. 
Within two years following the effective date of the approval of a tentative land division plan, 
the subdivider or partitioner shall complete all required conditions, submit the final plat to the 
director for review and approval, and record the final plat with the county recorder. [Ord. 2529, 
7-3-00; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.248.] 

15.235.130 Extension of partitions and subdivisions. 
A. Partition Extension. The director may, upon written request of the applicant prior to the 
expiration of the approval and following the Type I procedure, grant a one-time extension for an 
additional six months upon a written finding that the facts upon which the approval was based 
have not significantly changed. If the director makes a finding that the circumstances have 
changed to a minor extent, through the Type II process the director may add conditions to the 
partition to bring the partition into compliance with all current standards and ordinances and 

Page 37



extend the expiration date for up to six months. If conditions have substantially changed the 
director shall direct the applicant to refile the application for a new partition. 

B. Subdivision Extension. Upon written request of the applicant prior to the expiration of the 
approval and following the Type I procedure, the director may grant a one-time extension for an 
additional six months upon a written finding that the facts upon which the approval was based 
have not significantly changed. If the director makes a finding that the circumstances have 
changed to a minor extent, through the Type II process, or Type III process, an extension may be 
granted. The Type II process shall be used if original approval was a Type II. The Type III 
process shall be used if the original approval was a Type III. The director or planning 
commission may add conditions to the subdivision to bring the subdivision into compliance with 
all current standards and ordinances and extend the expiration date for up to six months. If 
conditions have substantially changed the director shall direct the applicant to refile the 
application for a new subdivision. 

C. Phased Subdivisions. Each filing of a final plat (phase) shall extend the expiration of the 
tentative plan by 12 months from the date of its expiration or the date of the previously filed final 
plat, whichever is later. Prior to the expiration of each phase, the applicant may apply for an 
extension to the phase which is about to expire through subsection (B) of this section. The 
extension of a phase under subsection (B) of this section shall also extend any subsequent 
phases. The total number of extensions shall not extend the tentative plan more than five years 
from its approval. [Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.249.] 

15.235.140 Modifications of an approved tentative plan. 
Following tentative plan approval, an applicant may make modifications to the plan consistent 
with the following procedures. The director will determine whether the proposed modification is 
a minor or major modification. 

A. Minor modifications are those in keeping with the general layout and pattern of the approved 
plan and include minor relocations of property lines, streets, walkways and alleys, changes in the 
site utilities, and changes which do not increase the number of lots by more than five percent. 
The director may approve a minor modification under a Type I procedure upon finding that the 
modification is substantially consistent with the approved tentative plan, is consistent with the 
provisions of this code and the conditions of approval, and does not have substantially greater 
impacts on surrounding properties than the original tentative plan. 

B. Other modifications including changes which increase the number of lots by more than five 
percent, changes in the patterns of streets, alleys, or walkways, changes in the site utilities and 
substantial changes to the conditions of approval are major modifications. A change in the whole 
application or substantive parts of an application shall be considered a new application. Major 
modifications may be approved using the same procedure as the original application. The criteria 
for approval shall be those for tentative plan approval. 

Page 38



C. An application for a modification shall be considered a new application for purposes of the 
120-day time limit for processing applications in accordance with NMC 15.100.100 and state 
statutes. The applicant shall acknowledge in writing that this is a new application for purposes of 
the 120-day rule. 

D. The city council shall establish a fee for modification of approved tentative plans by 
resolution. [Ord. 2590, 11-6-03. Code 2001 § 151.249.2.] 

15.235.150 Final partition map and subdivision plats – Drafting requirements. 
A. Partition Plats. The application for final partition plat approval shall include one original and 
two copies drawn in black India ink in clear and legible form. Original plats shall be in 
substantial conformity to the Yamhill County surveyor’s specifications and requirements, but in 
any event, scale requirements shall be the same as specified for tentative plans. Sheet dimensions 
and size shall be specified by the county recording officer for partition plats offered for record. 

BA. Subdivision Final Plats. 

1. The application for a final partition or subdivision plat approval shall include one 
original and two exact copies, 18 inches by 24 inches in size, and drawn with black India 
ink. Original plats and exact copies shall be in substantial conformity to the approved 
tentative plan and shall conform to the Yamhill County surveyor’s specifications and 
requirements pertaining to ink and material that has characteristics of adequate strength and 
permanency, as well as sheet size and suitability for binding and copying. 

2. Plats shall be in clear and legible form and may be placed on as many sheets as 
necessary, but a face sheet and an index page shall be included for all plats placed upon 
three or more sheets. Scale requirements shall be the same as specified for tentative plans 
adjusted in multiples of ten (10) such that all lLettering, symbols, line styles, and 
dimensions and the dedication and affidavit of the surveyor shall be of such size or type as 
will be clearly legible., and no part of the plat shall come nearer than one inch to any edge 
of any sheet. [Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.250.1.] 

15.235.160 Submission and review of final partition or subdivision plat or final partition 
map. 
A. The final subdivision or partition plat or final partition map shall be submitted to the director 
for final approval. Through a Type I procedure, the director shall determine whether the material 
conforms with the tentative plan approval requirements and with the applicable requirements of 
this code. If the director determines that the material does not conform, the applicant shall make 
corrections. 

B. The director shall determine that: 

Page 39



1. Streets, roads, and alleys for public use are dedicated without any reservation or 
restriction other than reversionary rights upon vacation of any such street or road and 
easements for public utilities. 

2. Streets and roads held for private use and indicated on the tentative plan of such 
subdivision or partition have been approved by the city. 

3. The proposal complies with this code. 

4. The plat is in substantial conformity with the provisions of the tentative plan for the 
subdivision or partition, as approved. 

5. The plat contains a donation to the public of all common improvements within rights-of-
way, tracts of land, or easements dedicated to the public or to the city, including but not 
limited to streets, roads, parks, stormwater systems, wastewater disposal and water supply 
systems. 

6. Explanations and maintenance provisions for of all common improvements required as 
conditions of approval of the tentative plan of the subdivision or the partition and intended 
to be privately owned and maintained have been accounted for and referenced on the plat. 

7. There will exist an adequate quantity and quality of water and an adequate wastewater 
disposal system to support the proposed use of the land described in the plat. 

8. Either: 

a. Improvements as required by this code or as a condition of tentative plan approval 
have been completed filed with the director; or 

b. A performance agreement (bond) or suitable substitute as agreed upon by the city 
and applicant has been filed with the director in sufficient amount to insure the 
completion of all required improvements; or 

c. A petition for improvements has been properly executed by the applicant who is 
effecting the partition or subdivision and will be assessed for said improvements. 

9. Taxes, as well as public liens, assessments and fees, with respect to the subdivision area 
have been paid, or adequate guarantee has been provided assuring said taxes, liens, 
assessments and fees will be paid prior to recordation. 

10. The subdivider has entered into agreement with the city relating to completion of 
improvements, payment of wastewater and water hookup fees, inspection fees, public lands 
payments, monumentation or any other elements deemed relevant to the purpose of this or 
any other city ordinance, state statute or federal law. 

Page 40



C. If the conditions set at the time of tentative land division approval are not fulfilled and the 
final plat or final map is not recorded by the tentative plan expiration date, the tentative land 
division approval is null and void. [Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 
§ 151.250.2.] 

15.235.170 Information required. 
The proposed subdivision or partition plat must contain the following information with respect to 
the subject area: 

A. The lengths of all chords, radii points of curvature, and tangent bearings shown. 

B. The lot lines of all lots within the subdivision, or all parcel lines within the partition, with 
dimensions in feet and hundredths of feet and with all bearings shown. Area in square feet for 
each lot or parcel. 

C. Numbers designating each block and lot in subdivisions, or each parcel in partitions, lots or 
parcels in each block to be numbered consecutively. 

D. Where a subdivision plat is an addition to a plat previously recorded, numbers of blocks and 
lots in consecutive continuation from such previous plat. 

E. The description and location of all permanent reference monuments, including a two (2) ties 
to the city Oreogn State Plane coordinate system as defined by Oregon Revised Statutes. 

F. An affidavit of a surveyor who is an Oregon registered engineer or Oregon licensed land 
surveyor, and who surveyed the subdivision or partition, conforming to the requirements of the 
Oregon Revised Statutes. 

G. The date, north point, and scale of the drawing, and a sufficient description to define the 
location and boundaries of the subdivision or partition. 

H. The locations, names and widths of all streets, existing or created. 

I. The location, dimensions, and purpose and beneficiary of all recorded and proposed public and 
private easements and all reserve strips shall be shown on the subdivision or partition plat along 
with the county clerk’s recording reference if the easement has been recorded with the county 
clerk. 

J. Before a partition or subdivision plat can be approved, there shall appear thereon a restriction 
providing that no building, structure, or other obstruction shall be placed or located on or in a 
public utility easement. 

K. A designation of all areas covered by water, and the approximate location and direction of 
flow of all watercourses. 

Page 41



L. A designation of all areas dedicated by the applicant, including proposed uses, and an 
effective written dedication of the areas. 

M. Designation of all areas reserved for donations to the public of all common improvements, 
including but not limited to streets, roads, parks, stormwater systems, wastewater disposal and 
water systems, the donation dedication of which was made a condition of approval of the 
tentative plan for the subdivision or partition. 

N. A copy of all protective deed restrictions and maintenance agreements being proposed and 
reference to recording of proposed restrictions and agreements on the face of the plat. 

O. A title report issued no more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of final plat recordation by 
a title insurance company licensed by the State of Oregon, verifying ownership by the applicant 
of the real property that is to be dedicated to the public and listing title insurance exclusions. 
[Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.250.3.] 

15.235.180 Approval signatures for final partition map and subdivision plats. 
A. Approval of a final partition map, together with the effective date, shall be noted in writing on 
the final map by the director. 

BA. Approval of a final partition or subdivision plat shall be acknowledged by including on the 
plat the authorized signature of: 

1. The director, whose signature shall certify that the final plat conforms to the conditions 
of tentative plan approval. 

2. The county assessor, certifying that all taxes on the property have been paid or bonded 
for in accordance with state law. 

3. The county or city surveyor, certifying that the subdivision plat complies with applicable 
survey laws. 

4. The city survyeor recorder, whose signature shall certify that all liens on the property 
have been paid indicate acceptance by the City of public improvements and rights-of-way, 
land and easements granted to the city or to the public as indicated on the final plat. 

5. Additional county officials as required by the county surveyor. 

CB. Deliver one original and two exact copies of the approved subdivision plat to the office of 
the county clerk for recording. 

DC. Return one of the approved an exact copyies of the recorded plat to the director. The copy 
shall be made with permanent black India-type ink or silver halide permanent photocopy on three 
millimeter polyester film. [Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.251.] 

Page 42



Cross-reference: See ORS 92.095 for prepayment of taxes before recording of subdivision plats 
can occur. 

Article II. Standards for Land Divisions 

15.235.190 Dedication. 
A. Generally. The director may require right-of-way for adequate and proper streets, including 
arterials, collector streets, local streets, and other streets, to be dedicated to the public by the 
applicant of such design and in such locations as are necessary to facilitate provision for the 
transportation and access needs of the community and the subject area in accordance with the 
purpose of this code. 

B. Special Safety Requirements. Where necessary to ensure safety, reduce traffic hazards, and 
promote the welfare of the general public and residents of the subject area, the director may 
require that local streets be so designated as to discourage their use by nonlocal traffic. 

C. Ownership Verification of Dedications. In the event approval of a land division is conditioned 
upon the dedication of a portion of the area to the public, the applicant shall submit to the 
director a title report issued within the past thirty (30) days by a title insurance company licensed 
in the State of Oregon, verifying ownership by the applicant of the real property that is to be 
dedicated to the public. 

D. Approval Required on Dedications. No instrument dedicating land, rights-of-way or 
easements to the public or to the city shall be accepted for recording unless such instrument bears 
the approval authorized signature of the city surveyor director. 

E. Inclusion of a transportation route in the transportation plan is intended to indicate the public’s 
need to acquire a public right-of-way in the area through legally and constitutionally allowed 
means. Notwithstanding other provisions of this code or the comprehensive plan, inclusion of 
such a route does not restrict the use of the property by the owner who owns the property when 
the route is first included in any city plan, unless the review body finds the restriction is exempt 
from those provisions of ORS Chapter 197, as amended by Ballot Measure 49, passed November 
6, 2007, or that just compensation will be paid in accordance with that section. [Ord. 2005-2619, 
5-16-05; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.252.1.] 

15.235.200 Lot and parcel side lines. 
As far as is practicable, lot and parcel side lines shall run at right angles to the street upon which 
the lots or parcels face, except that on curved streets they shall be radial to the curve. [Ord. 2619, 
5-16-05; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.252.2.] 

Penalty: See NMC 15.05.120. 

Page 43



15.235.210 Suitability for intended use. 
All lots and parcels shall be suitable for the purpose for which they are intended to be used. No 
lot or parcel shall be of such size or design as to be detrimental to the health, safety, or sanitary 
needs of the residents of the subdivision or partition, or of such lot or parcel, as determined by 
the director, in accordance with this code. [Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 
§ 151.252.3.] 

Penalty: See NMC 15.05.120. 

15.235.220 Future subdivision or partition of lots or parcels. 
Where the subdivision or partition will result in a lot or parcel one-half acre or larger in size, 
which in the judgment of the director is likely to be further divided in the future, the director may 
require that the location of lot and parcel lines and other details of layout be such that future 
division may readily be made without violating the requirements of this code, and without 
interfering with orderly extension of adjacent streets. Any restriction of buildings within future 
street locations shall be made a matter of record if the director deems it necessary for the purpose 
of future land division. [Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.252.4.] 

15.235.230 Platting standards. 
A. Drainage. Where land in the subdivision or partition is or will be periodically subject to 
accumulations of surface water, or is traversed by any watercourse, channel, stream, or creek, the 
director may require the applicant to provide for adequate unrestricted drainage over drainage 
land by dedicating to the public easements approved by the director for protection of such needs 
by conveying ownership of such drainage purposes to the city or to an incorporated drainage 
district, or domestic water supply district, within which such land may be located. 

B. Railroads. 

1. Crossings. Special requirements may be imposed by the director, including but not 
limited to provisions for separation of street and railroad grades, connection with any 
railroad crossing, which will immediately affect the safety of the residents of the 
subdivision or partition, for the protection of such residents and the safety of the general 
public in accordance with the purpose of this code. 

2. Subdivision or Partition Adjacent to Right-of-Way. Where the subdivision or partition is 
adjacent to a railroad right-of-way, and the surrounding economic and physical conditions 
indicate such property will be used for industrial purposes in the normal growth of the 
community, all streets shall be located at a sufficient distance from said right-of-way to 
allow for reasonable sites for industrial use adjacent to said right-of-way. 

C. Partial Development. Where the subdivision or partition include only a part of the area owned 
by the applicant, the director may require a sketch of a tentative layout of streets in the remainder 
of said ownership. 

Page 44



D. Unsuitable Areas. Areas subject to slippage, flooding, or other natural hazards shall not be 
divided in a manner that would be dangerous to the health and safety of those who would live in 
said areas, or the general public. [Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 
§ 151.252.5.] 

Penalty: See NMC 15.05.120. 

Page 45


	Agenda
	Proclamation - AprilChild Abuse Prevention Month
	Proclamation - Public Safety Telecommunications Week
	Resolution No. 2011-2939 - Civic Corridor sign code
	Resolution No. 2011-2940 - Fire Station 20 Remodel Project
	Resolution No. 2941 - WWTP Expansion Project
	Resolution No. 2011-2942 - Partition and Subdivision Plat Signature Requirements



